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          2                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: I want to thank

          3  everybody for paying attention. This is one of the

          4  few times that people actually listened to my plea

          5  and actually stopped talking. I am incredibly

          6  overwhelmed by that reaction.

          7                 My name is Herbert Berman and I chair

          8  the Finance Committee of the City Council. I would

          9  like to welcome everybody to this morning's session.

         10  We have several items on our agenda.

         11                 We are going to do the BIDs first, so

         12  I guess the gentleman who is going to be the person

         13  who will testify on all issues is George Glatter.

         14                 Oh, there you are. Hi, George.

         15  George, just to cover all of the testimony, would

         16  you identify yourself and your affiliation, please?

         17                 MR. GLATTER: Sure. I am George

         18  Glatter. I am Executive Director of the Neighborhood

         19  Development Division of the Department of Business

         20  Services.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Which has

         22  jurisdiction over the BIDs?

         23                 MR. GLATTER: Correct.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: All right.

         25                 I'm going to read this opening
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          2  statement, which I am required to do as a matter of

          3  law, so bear with me. It's not very exciting, but we

          4  are required.

          5                 Today we are holding an opening

          6  hearing on Intros No. 886 and 888, two local laws

          7  that would establish a new Kingsbridge BID in the

          8  Bronx and an 86th Street Bayridge BID in Brooklyn

          9  respectively.

         10                 On February 27th, this Committee

         11  adopted two resolutions setting today for the date

         12  to hear all those interested in the establishment of

         13  these two BIDs.

         14                 After we hear from all witnesses, we

         15  will adjourn the hearing for at least 30 days, which

         16  is the statutorily mandated time during which

         17  property owners objecting to the establishment of a

         18  BID may file objections.

         19                 In the absence of a significant

         20  objection, if the Committee and the Council can

         21  answer the following four questions affirmatively,

         22  it may adopt the local law establishing each of

         23  these BIDs.

         24                 The four questions we must be

         25  prepared to answer are -- by the way, it is strictly
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          2  coincidental that we are approaching the Passover

          3  season -- number one: Were all notices of hearing

          4  for all hearings required to be held published and

          5  mailed as required by law and otherwise sufficient?

          6                 Two: Does all the real property

          7  within the district's boundaries benefit from the

          8  establishment of the district, except as otherwise

          9  provided by law?

         10                 Three: Is all real property

         11  benefitted by the district included within the

         12  district?

         13                 Four: Is the establishment of the

         14  district in the best interest of the public?

         15                 If the Committee finds in the

         16  affirmative on these four questions and the number

         17  of objections required to prevent the creation of

         18  each district are not filed, then the legislation

         19  can be adopted. It doesn't mean it must be, it means

         20  it can be adopted.

         21                 Following our hearing on the two

         22  BIDs, the Committee will consider four Land Use

         23  items.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBLES: Mr. Chairman?

         25                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Mr. Robles, you
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          2  have a question?

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBLES: Before we get

          4  started --

          5                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Apparently you

          6  want to ask it before we get started?

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBLES: Yes. Because

          8  when we had the hearing not too long ago with the

          9  agency, we were discussing BIDs about how they have

         10  not been coming before us. It was also said that a

         11  number of them were pending to come before us. And I

         12  don't believe this was one of them that was before

         13  us before.

         14                 So, the question, if you remember the

         15  last hearing, was, they were supposed to provide us

         16  with what other pending applications that we were

         17  aware --

         18                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: George, do you

         19  have the pending applications?

         20                 MR. GLATTER: Well, the two others

         21  that are currently in the process are Yorkville in

         22  Manhattan, and also East Mid-Manhattan.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBLES: With all due

         24  respect, the point was that, if you remember the

         25  discussion --
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: No, there are two

          3  others that were not prepared to come before us yet.

          4                 Beyond the two additional, the

          5  Yorkville and Mid-Manhattan, are there any other BID

          6  applications pending out there?

          7                 MR. GLATTER: There are none that are

          8  in the approval process. There are groups that we

          9  are working with to bring them to the approval

         10  process. If that's what you're talking about, we

         11  could provide you with that, but there's no

         12  guarantee whether those are ever going to become

         13  BIDs or not.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBLES: Okay.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Okay, Mr. Robles?

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBLES: Okay.

         17                 MR. GLATTER: Okay.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Are there any

         19  other questions?

         20                 Thank you for your forebearance.

         21                 George, you have a statement?

         22                 MR. GLATTER: Yes.

         23                 Good, Mr. Chairman, and members of

         24  the Finance Committee. My name is George Glatter,

         25  I'm Executive Director of the Neighborhood
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          2  Development Division of the Department of Business

          3  Services.

          4                 DBS supports the establishment of the

          5  86th Street Bayridge Business Improvement District

          6  in the Borough of Brooklyn, and the Kingsbridge

          7  Business Improvement District in the Borough of the

          8  Bronx.

          9                 Geographically the proposed 86th

         10  Street Bayridge BID, encompasses all properties

         11  fronting on 86th Street between Fort Hamilton

         12  Parkway and Fourth Avenue.

         13                 The north side of 87th Street between

         14  Fourth and Fifth Avenues, Fifth Avenue between 85th

         15  and 88th Streets and Fourth Avenue between 85th and

         16  87th Street. Services to be provided in the district

         17  include street and sidewalk maintenance, marketing

         18  and promotion, small capital improvements, business

         19  advocacy, administration and other services that may

         20  be required for the promotion and enhancement of the

         21  district.

         22                 The 86th Street Bay Ridge District

         23  Management Association will manage the district. The

         24  budget for the first year of operation is $210,000.

         25                 The proposed Kingsbridge District
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          2  encompasses all properties fronting on Broadway,

          3  between West 230th Street and West 236th Street and

          4  West 231st Street between the Major Deegan

          5  Expressway and Corlier Avenue.

          6                 Services to be provided in the

          7  Kingsbridge District include area maintenance,

          8  beautification, security survey, marketing and

          9  promotion, holiday and seasonal decoration and

         10  administration, in addition to other services that

         11  may be required for promotion and enhancement of the

         12  district.

         13                 The Kingsbridge District Management

         14  Association will manage the district. The budget for

         15  the first year is $235,000.

         16                 As required by the BID law, the 86th

         17  Bayridge and the Kingsbridge District Management

         18  Associations mailed the summary of the City Council

         19  resolution to each property owner within the

         20  proposed district at the addresses shown on the

         21  latest City assessment roll, to such other persons

         22  as are registered with the City to receive tax bills

         23  concerning real property within the districts, and

         24  to tenants of each building within the proposed

         25  districts. In addition, DBS arranged for the
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          2  publication of a copy of the summary of the

          3  resolutions at least once in the City Record as

          4  required by BID law.

          5                 And there are representatives of the

          6  sponsoring organizations who will be testifying.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: All right,

          8  George, if I may?

          9                 MR. GLATTER: Yes.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: You heard the

         11  asking of the four questions. Now, obviously this is

         12  prospective, do you monitor the operation of the

         13  requirements?

         14                 MR. GLATTER: Yes, we do.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: So you will be

         16  prepared at the adjourn date to come back and

         17  indicate as to whether or not you have determined it

         18  as a favorable response or an unfavorable response?

         19                 MR. GLATTER: Yes, we will report back

         20  to you on the responses.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Okay, are there

         22  any questions?

         23                 George, why don't you just remain up

         24  there.

         25                 MR. GLATTER: Okay.

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            11

          1  COMMITTEE ON FINANCE

          2                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Okay, Council

          3  Member Eisland.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER EISLAND: Yes, just a

          5  quick statement.

          6                 I want to thank you, George, very

          7  much. You have been most responsive to my office and

          8  to others who have called you concerning the

          9  intricacies and the scheduling and various

         10  questions, so I really wanted to thank you for that.

         11                 MR. GLATTER: I also have to say it's

         12  the staff that's really responsible.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER EISLAND: They are

         14  superb. But you are talking about the BID staff?

         15                 MR. GLATTER: Yes.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER EISLAND: I am talking

         17  about the BID staff as well, as well as my own staff

         18  and we've all worked very closely together on this

         19  with you and you have helped us a great deal.

         20                 Thank you.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Any other

         22  questions or statements?

         23                 Okay, George, thank you.

         24                 Has anybody filed a request to

         25  testify? Okay.
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          2                 On the Kingsbridge application, there

          3  were four people -- let me say this, that is it

          4  necessary -- while the four people are Gary Moore,

          5  Margaret Donato, Bruce Feld, and Janet Golovner,

          6  now, if you are all in favor, and apparently you all

          7  are, and you are all, it's not necessary to be

          8  repetitive, so you may all come up if you don't

          9  mind, but perhaps just one person can be your

         10  spokesperson. If that's not good enough we will

         11  listen to your testimony, but that's probably the

         12  best way of doing it, as I proposed. So, the people

         13  whose names I just called.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER EISLAND: It's fine if

         15  you come forward.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Okay, starting

         17  from my left, your right, would you identify

         18  yourself, sir?

         19                 Also, bring the mike -- press the

         20  button in so that the two lights are on, and bring

         21  the mike close to you.

         22                 Your name, sir?

         23                 MR. FELD: I am Bruce Feld. I am the

         24  lead consultant with the Kingsbridge Riverdale Van

         25  Cortlandt Development Corporation which is the
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          2  non-for-profit sponsor of the Kingsbridge BID

          3  proposal.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Sir, your name?

          5                 MR. MOORE: I'm Gary Moore. I am a

          6  property owner and the owner of Robert E. Hill,

          7  Incorporated, local realtors.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Ma'am?

          9                 MS. GOLOVNER: I am Janet Golovner.

         10                 Can you hear me? Am I on?

         11                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: You are very much

         12  on.

         13                 MS. GOLOVNER: I am Janet Golovner. I

         14  am Executive Director of the Kingsbridge Riverdale

         15  Van Cortlandt Development Corporation, which is the

         16  sponsoring organization of the Kingsbridge BID.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Ma'am.

         18                 MS. DONATO: I am Margaret Donato. I

         19  represent Norfolk Bank, and I'm a community resident

         20  as well.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Will it be one

         22  person to testify on behalf of all four?

         23                 MR. MOORE: In respect to the

         24  Committee's time situation, Ms. Golovner and I will

         25  present the information.
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          2                 MS. GOLOVNER: Okay, I am just going

          3  to give, again, in respect to your time restraints,

          4  a very brief overview of the Kingsbridge community,

          5  and Bruce is here to talk about the outreach and any

          6  of the other, we both are ready to answer any

          7  questions which you may have.

          8                 I first of all would like to thank

          9  the Committee for listening to us today, and I would

         10  like to thank Council Member June Eisland and her

         11  staff, which have been very helpful and supportive

         12  to us, as well as our other elected officials in the

         13  community.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Council Member

         15  Eisland has also been a major advocate on behalf of

         16  the BID application.

         17                 MS. GOLOVNER: Yes, she has. And she

         18  has been helpful, and she has spoken to people over

         19  the property owners and she has been an advocate out

         20  there in the community for us.

         21                 The Kingsbridge area serves a middle

         22  class community, the Kingsbridge BID area, a

         23  commercial district, of modern and low-income

         24  people, as well as residents of Riverdale and

         25  thereby Van Cortlandt Village. It is located at a
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          2  Crossroads, really, which makes a very easy access

          3  to the suburban malls, and one of the reasons we are

          4  interested in establishing a BID is that we can make

          5  this a more shopper-oriented community, creating

          6  amenities that will keep those tax dollars into the

          7  community. You can be, in half an hour you can be

          8  across the Tapanzee Bridge and shopping and the

          9  Palisades Mall. So, we really want to retain as much

         10  of those dollars as possible for the City of New

         11  York and also for the residents of this area.

         12                 There have been amenities which have

         13  already been established on the block in

         14  anticipation of  BID. We have improved our street

         15  lighting, we have pebblestone concrete planters that

         16  are out there, we have put in some trash receptacles

         17  and we have a small maintenance program.

         18                 This we have been able to do with

         19  some grant money, but it is not a steady source of

         20  income, it is not a full-time maintenance staff.

         21                 George talked about the types of

         22  services that we will be providing, and one of the

         23  most important things that a BID can do for this

         24  area is to build a strong merchant community. This

         25  is a very, the business community has changed over
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          2  the 20 years. It is very diverse, and that diversity

          3  has brought much new vigor to the community. We have

          4  more languages spoken, we have more types of food

          5  available for take out and for sit down. It's made a

          6  more interesting place to shop. But we need to build

          7  a stronger merchant community of the old time

          8  merchants, the new merchants, and assist those that

          9  we can in building strong financial structures

         10  within their own business.

         11                 There is a lot more I could say but I

         12  really would like to be able to respond to any or

         13  your questions, and I would like to turn it over to

         14  Bruce, who is in the process of passing out some

         15  information to you on our outreach.

         16                 MR. FELD: Thank you, Janet.

         17                 Good morning, Chairman Berman,

         18  Council Members, again, I am Bruce Feld, the lead

         19  consultant regarding this project and a resident of

         20  the Northwest Bronx for 34 years.

         21                 From the start of our outreach effort

         22  we addressed four constituencies: Property owners,

         23  merchants, residential tenants in the larger

         24  Kingsbridge community. The diverse composition of

         25  our steering committee gave us a major leg up in

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            17

          1  COMMITTEE ON FINANCE

          2  communicating with all of them. Both arms of our

          3  BID, 231st Street, as well as Broadway, are well

          4  represented on the Steering Committee as our mom and

          5  pop operation, banks, chain stores.

          6                 Many of the business people on our

          7  committee have spent decades in the area, some of

          8  them into the second, even third generation. As

          9  required, property owners constitute a majority of

         10  our steering committee, but almost all of our

         11  property owners are also commercial tenants, that

         12  is, are also merchants. They do business on the

         13  street, they have no one but these individuals but

         14  themselves to pass a BID assessment along to. Our

         15  residential representative is the Tenant Association

         16  President, the one completely residential property

         17  in the BID, and by the way, in our plan, neither

         18  residential tenants in this building for those

         19  living above ground floor stores, make any

         20  contribution to the Business Improvement District by

         21  way of assessment.

         22                 The Community Board Representative

         23  headed the Tenant Association of the Housing

         24  Development immediately to the south, and as you

         25  know in the materials you have, Community Board 8 in
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          2  the Bronx has endorsed formation of this BID

          3  unanimously.

          4                 Our outreach also benefitted because

          5  we were able to give the community a taste of what a

          6  BID offered.

          7                 For two consecutive holiday seasons

          8  the steering committee raised of thousands of

          9  dollars for more than 50 merchants and owners to

         10  decorate the shopping area, and not incidently to

         11  promote the BID, which plans in the future to

         12  finance these holiday decorations from its budgets.

         13                 Our steering committee is also

         14  responsible for upgrading the street lighting in the

         15  merchant area. According to the results of the

         16  survey we did, more than 80 percent of our merchants

         17  rated better street lighting as a priority.

         18                 It would be difficult for the BID to

         19  finance this expense, $50,000, $60,000 from its own

         20  budget, and with the help of Borough President

         21  Ferrer, we received funds enabling us to work with

         22  DOT street lightings to devise a way to renovate and

         23  upgrade every one of the 80 street light poles from

         24  230th Street to 238th Street and Broadway.

         25                 A packet I've distributed summarizes
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          2  our outreach effort. This large notebook fear not, I

          3  will not ask anyone in the Committee to look at it,

          4  though you are welcome to do so, includes all of the

          5  information we have distributed, as well as

          6  statements of support from property owners and

          7  neighbors.

          8                 Most of our 22 mailings went to all

          9  of the merchants, all of the property owners in the

         10  area, that's 250 to 300 people. We had special

         11  resident newsletters. We were covered by cable TV,

         12  covered by the Riverdale Press, the Riverdale

         13  review, even got coverage in the New York Times, and

         14  the Daily News. And in addition to this

         15  comprehensive outreach, we did individual outreach,

         16  one on one, with the merchants and property owners

         17  in the area, in total they account for more than 600

         18  contacts.

         19                 Our intention in this whole outreach

         20  efforts over these past five to six years was to

         21  reach out to this community, to educate them and

         22  secure support from all of them, and we have got

         23  about two-thirds of the property owners who have

         24  affirmatively supported this proposal in writing,

         25  and 40 percent of the merchants similarly expressing
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          2  their support.

          3                 We have maintained a continuous flow

          4  of information and good publicity by our very strict

          5  standards, because if you said you weren't taking a

          6  position, or if you said, as one property owner said

          7  to me, well, I'm for it, but my company is not going

          8  to be able because of the difficulty with the

          9  franchisee to take a formal position, we would not

         10  count those individuals. Only those who said yes,

         11  I'm for it, and were willing to put their signature

         12  on the line, and that totals 122 property owners and

         13  merchants in this area.

         14                 We believe that we uncovered very

         15  little opposition. We believe we have established

         16  the consensus and we look forward to the Committee's

         17  support for our application.

         18                 Thank you.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: I do know that

         20  the one issue that we give as a caveat is that we

         21  want full and open disclosure at what's going on and

         22  budget adoption processes, et cetera. So, generally,

         23  you know, we are willing to say that we are going to

         24  go along with the approval process, unless we find

         25  out contrary to the information, and we are
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          2  sensitive about that.

          3                 Let me ask you, what was the date

          4  that you mailed out a copy of the Council

          5  resolution?

          6                 MS. GOLOVNER: That was mailed out on

          7  March 16th. DBS has the particulars of the mailing.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Now, are the

          9  boundaries naturally occurring to cover a certain

         10  commercial area, or with certain businesses or areas

         11  included to exclude for other reasons such as -- to

         12  be excluded for other reasons such as objections by

         13  owners?

         14                 MS. GOLOVNER: No. The boundaries were

         15  -- and Bruce can talk to that if he wants, but the

         16  boundaries are geographic, starting with -- and they

         17  are community-wide really. It goes from 230th

         18  Street, which is really where the Business District

         19  starts because across from 230th is Marble Hill

         20  Houses, and it goes up to 236th Street, which then

         21  is a warehouse area, and on Broadway it is the Major

         22  Deegan Highway, and then it goes to Corlier Avenue,

         23  which also sets a line as far as the neighborhood,

         24  contiguous neighborhood.

         25                 MR. FELD: If I may, let me add to
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          2  that. In the history of the development of this

          3  proposal, we have been particularly sensitive to the

          4  views of the business people in the area. It

          5  originally was a larger geographic area described,

          6  but we discovered in particular the people who are

          7  on the two ends of the west 231st transfers, because

          8  of the Deegan Highway and because of some of the

          9  aspects of the topography and the development on the

         10  west side, had relatively little involvement in

         11  identifying with the Kingsbridge area. And our

         12  steering committee, made up all, as I say, even in

         13  the case of the property owners, people who were

         14  doing business in the area recommended that the area

         15  be reduced somewhat to account for the fact that

         16  this was not a natural business community in terms

         17  of the perception and to keep it compact and, of

         18  course, contiguous, as the law requires. So we have

         19  been very much pragmatists about this.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Actually, I am

         21  delighted that you are.

         22                 All right, are there any other

         23  questions?

         24                 Thank you for that very cohesive

         25  presentation, I appreciate it.
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          2                 MR. FELD: Thank you, Council Member.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: I will set the

          4  date in a very short time.

          5                 MS. GOLOVNER: I'd just like to point

          6  out that we brought with us today a representation

          7  of our steering committee and our business community

          8  and to show their support for this project.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Sure. I can tell

         10  by the signs that -- the subtly was not lost on me.

         11                 MR. FELD: Thank you.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Ms. Eisland, you

         13  wanted to say something?

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER JUNE: Yes. I just

         15  wanted to say, first of all, with the people that

         16  came, please raise their hands. Thank you very much.

         17  You have stuck with it, this was a five-year

         18  project, as was mentioned, and I want to say that

         19  this Committee under the leadership with Herb Berman

         20  has been very responsible in asking questions, in

         21  doing follow-up of BIDs that we have passed in the

         22  years since we had the responsibility of hearing

         23  about BIDs, and while there were some of the

         24  problems with some of the larger ones in Manhattan,

         25  I want to thank the Chairman for supporting and
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          2  realizing the importance of the BIDs outside of

          3  Manhattan, the smaller ones that really make

          4  communities tick and really make communities go

          5  forward.

          6                 Marty Golden from Brooklyn and I have

          7  discussed this. We have kind of watched our BIDs go

          8  together through the City Planning Commission, and

          9  Chairman of the Committee, Herb Berman, has

         10  understood being a representative from other than

         11  Manhattan, from the beautiful Borough of Brooklyn,

         12  has understood how important not only the careful

         13  work that you've done, but what the outcome will be

         14  for the vitality, not only of the particular

         15  community in Kingsbridge where this is located, but

         16  really for the whole Bronx, because we are five

         17  minutes from the Westchester Border.

         18                 We have been hemorrhaging shoppers

         19  for too long a period of time, and this is going to

         20  stem that hemorrhaging and this is going to bring

         21  back to life, in the way that we remember it, the

         22  shopping area I'm sure for older timers and

         23  welcoming new timers. We've held on and now this is

         24  going to be our zenith.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Thank you, Ms.
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          2  Eisland. And in no way do I want to inhibit those

          3  nice words.

          4                 Thank you very much, people.

          5                 All right, we are going to quickly go

          6  on now. We are going to do the 86th Street BID.

          7  There are several people who have agreed to speak in

          8  favor, and they are Steve Petros. Anne Tesoraria.

          9  Patrick Condren, and John Logue.

         10                 Ms. Eisland, who has to go to a Bronx

         11  Delegation meeting, asked if she can vote now. We

         12  will be voting on three items. The Land Use items --

         13  four items. Two Land Use, two -- they are all Land

         14  Use items.

         15                 Claude, would you ask Ms. Eisland's

         16  vote?

         17                 COUNCIL CLERK CHERRY: Eisland.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER EISLAND: Thank you

         19  very much for the courtesy. I vote aye on all items.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Thank you.

         21                 Okay, would you each identify

         22  yourself, please, so we will know who is there?

         23                 MR. CONDREN: My name is Patrick

         24  Condren, I am the consultant and executive director

         25  for this program.
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          2                 MR. LOGUE: My name is John Logue, I

          3  own Hinche's Ice Cream Parlour within the district.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Which ice cream

          5  parlour?

          6                 MR. LOGUE: Hinche's Ice Cream

          7  Parlour.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Hinche's, oh,

          9  yes, I know Hinche's.

         10                 MS. TESORARA: Anne Tesorara.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Sir?

         12                 MR. PETROS: My name is Steve Petros.

         13  I am a property owner on 86th Street and also on a

         14  real estate company.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Thank you very

         16  much. Who is going to be the spokesman?

         17                 MR. CONDREN: The lead spokesman, if I

         18  may, Mr. Chairman?

         19                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Mr. Condren,

         20  thank you.

         21                 MR. CONDREN: And ask each of our

         22  Committee leaders here to take a few moments.

         23                 Let me first say that we air many of

         24  the statements made earlier, so, you know, the

         25  prepared written statement that I submit, you will
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          2  find some similarities, so I will not take the time

          3  to --

          4                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: You have already

          5  elevated the stature of your remarks considerably by

          6  making that recommendation.

          7                 So, having brevity in the order, I

          8  will simply say that my name is Patrick Condren.

          9  This is a coalition of merchants organizations and

         10  86th Street proposed Business Improvement District

         11  is one of the focus groups in which we have been

         12  developing a program.

         13                 I would like to turn over the

         14  comments to John Logue, whose family operation has

         15  been there for many years.

         16                 MR. LOGUE: I am going to keep my

         17  comments extremely short.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: You could have

         19  brought some ice cream in.

         20                 MR. LOGUE: And burgers too.

         21                 Good morning, Chairman of the

         22  Committee, my name is John Logue, I am the owner the

         23  Hinche's Ice Cream Parlour. I come before you today

         24  to express my passionate and overwhelming support

         25  for the proposed 86th Street BID.
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          2                 My family has been involved in

          3  Hinche's for 53 years, and have zoned it for more

          4  than 40.

          5                 Hinche's is a commercial tenant in

          6  the mixed use building which lies within the

          7  boundaries. We have a net lease on the property and

          8  will therefore be responsible for the BID

          9  assessment.

         10                 I have been involved in the BID

         11  formation process for about six years, and would

         12  like to make some comments on the need for the BID

         13  on 86th Street.

         14                 As you can imagine, my family has

         15  seen many changes in the commercial corridor. Fifty

         16  years ago 86th Street was just another local

         17  shopping area in Brooklyn with nearly every store a

         18  mom and pop operation, whose zone is also our

         19  community residents.

         20                 Today the corridor is dominated by

         21  regional, national, and multi-national change. 86th

         22  Street has evolved into the major shopping

         23  destination for Southwest Brooklyn. Thankfully, this

         24  evolution has brought many new customers to our area

         25  and has had a positive economic impact on 86th
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          2  Street. But this change also brings challenge. The

          3  area is heavily trafficked, and, therefore, more

          4  heavily lit than ever before.

          5                 We have worked successfully with

          6  Councilman Golden and the New York City Department

          7  of Sanitation, to get increased basket service, but

          8  more needs to be done.

          9                 Constantly changing store managers do

         10  not have the sense of community that the mom and pop

         11  operators once did, and corporate training has not

         12  stressed the importance of a clean sidewalk,

         13  graffiti-free storefront and the negative effects of

         14  flyer distribution.

         15                 Our BID is intended to provide the

         16  additional services necessary to maintain the 86th

         17  Street shopping district in an atmosphere which is

         18  clean, safe, graffiti-free and community friendly.

         19                 I would be happy to answer any

         20  questions the Committee might have. I would also

         21  like to thank Councilman Golden, who was a major

         22  support of this BID, and I respectfully request that

         23  you vote positively on this BID today.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Before we go to

         25  the next one, I also want to say that Councilman
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          2  Golden also has been a very, very significant and

          3  very vocal advocate for the passage of the BID, and

          4  he has been really up forward on that issue.

          5                 Ma'am.

          6                 MS. TESORARA: My name is Anne

          7  Tesorara. I am the property owner of the community

          8  and a resident for over 80 years. I am pleased to

          9  say that my sister, children and grandchildren are

         10  also active in this area. My son-in-law has his own

         11  attorney business in the area. I have attended many

         12  of the meetings, planning and BID, and seen the

         13  material distributed in recent years. I think a BID

         14  is good for everyone.

         15                 I am aware of the tremendous amount

         16  of time and effort that John Logue has dedicated to

         17  this project, which benefits all. It is my opinion t

         18  that this long-term economic development project is

         19  a good thing and I support it whole-heartedly.

         20                 Thank you.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Thank you, Ma'am.

         22                 Sir.

         23                 MR. PETROS: My name is Steve Petros.

         24  I am a property owner and manager in the 86th Street

         25  and Sunset Park area. I mention that because about
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          2  six years ago I was the biggest skeptic when the

          3  concept of a BID was first introduced to the

          4  community of Sunset Park, Brooklyn.

          5                 I believe no one or their promises.

          6  For this reason I became actively involved in the

          7  formation of the BID and ultimately its daily

          8  operation.

          9                 Today I am the vice president of the

         10  Board of Directors and a member of the Executive

         11  Committee of the Sunset Park BID.

         12                 In retrospect, it is my fervent

         13  belief that the Sunset Park BID was one of the major

         14  causes for the area's amazing revitalization.

         15  Statistics show that business and services have

         16  doubled over the last four years that the BID has

         17  been in existence.

         18                 During these years I have learned

         19  what a BID is. It is a form for business people to

         20  address the subjects that directly affect their

         21  community.

         22                 It is a form where community leaders

         23  can make direct contact with their constituents in

         24  order to help create and implement changes in policy

         25  and procedures.
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          2                 It is a group of civic-minded people

          3  deciding how to best spend the money made available,

          4  to assist every member of the Business Improvement

          5  District as equally as possible.

          6                 It is many voices combined into one

          7  speaking out for the matters that count, things like

          8  Sanitation, safety, graffiti, parking, business

          9  promotion and services, and lobbying City and local

         10  officials.

         11                 My family and I are totally in favor

         12  of the BID, and the sooner we can implement it, the

         13  better.

         14                 Thank you very much.

         15                 MR. DUBOW: In summary, Chairman, this

         16  is representative of the education and outreach

         17  group that we've had. It's indicative of the 132

         18  properties and over 90 businesses in the contiguous

         19  Business Improvement District proposal. I will

         20  submit my written testimony, in addition to support

         21  documents from Century 21, whose managers are also

         22  here in the room, who own some of the largest stores

         23  in addition to some of the chain stores, but they

         24  are a very community-oriented group and we thank

         25  them and thank Councilman Golden and thank some of
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          2  the other larger tenants, residents and property

          3  owners, and thank you for the opportunity today.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Thank you very,

          5  very much.

          6                 Those who are here on behalf of the

          7  86th Street BID, if you will just raise your hands,

          8  we will acknowledge your presence.

          9                 Thank you very much.

         10                 By the way, is there anyone here who

         11  seeks to speak in opposition to either of these two

         12  bids?

         13                 Wise choice.

         14                 All right, thank you very much. I

         15  have one question, if I may.

         16                 Do you know the date that you mailed

         17  out a copy of the Council Resolution?

         18                 MR. DUBOW: Yes. Over a two-day

         19  period, on March 15th and 16th, Thursday and Friday.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: And you heard my

         21  question of the other BID about naturally occurring

         22  districts, would you describe your geographical area

         23  the same way?

         24                 MR. DUBOW: Yes, it is actually more

         25  of a contiguous district. It's very tight.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Are there any

          3  questions?

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER GOLDEN: I just want to

          5  say thank you, Herb Berman, Finance Committee,

          6  people from Brooklyn and the Bronx. Good luck. It's

          7  a great victory for all today. Thank you.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Thank you very

          9  much.

         10                 Thank you very much, people. I

         11  appreciate your presence.

         12                 All right, we have two Land Use

         13  items, but before we do that, Mr. Spigner, you are

         14  seeking to be excused?

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER SPIGNER: Yes, without

         16  objection, Mr. Chairman, if you will call my name, I

         17  would be very --

         18                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Which name do you

         19  want me to call, Mr. Spigner.

         20                 Would you call Mr. Spigner's name for

         21  the vote?

         22                 COUNCIL CLERK CHERRY: Spigner.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER SPIGNER: Aye.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Land Use. All

         25  right, ladies and gentlemen, we have the two Land
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          2  Use items.

          3                 MR. PECHEFSKY: Good morning. I am

          4  David Pechefsky from City Council Finance Division.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: How are you, sir?

          6                 MR. PECHEFSKY: Fine, thank you.

          7                 If you will please refer to page two

          8  of the memo from myself to Chairman Berman.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Excuse me one

         10  minute.

         11                 Ladies and gentlemen, I appreciate

         12  your happiness, but we are still trying to conduct

         13  some business, so if you don't mind, please try to

         14  keep it down while we finish our business here.

         15                 Okay, folks, would you please look at

         16  -- what happened to everybody? Angel?

         17                 All right, we have before us Land Use

         18  items 952, 53, 1017 and 1020.

         19                 MR. PECHEFSKY: The first, Land Use

         20  952, is a Partnership New Homes Program. This is in

         21  Council Member Perkins' district. It's a 20

         22  three-family homes, a 20-year exemption, first year

         23  amount of 54,000, full exempt amount of $963,000.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Any questions on

         25  952?
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBLES: I am glad to

          3  see Jim Gardella is finally joining us.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: That's not a

          5  question, but I will accept it nevertheless.

          6                 MR. PECHEFSKY: Next is Land Use 953.

          7  This is also a Partnership New Homes Program in

          8  Council Member Perkins' district. Also 20

          9  three-family homes, 20-year exemption, first year

         10  exempt amount of 54,000, 963,000 is the total exempt

         11  amount.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Any questions?

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBLES: I'm glad to

         14  see Jim Gardella.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: 1017.

         16                 MR. PECHEFSKY: 1017 is also

         17  Partnership New Homes. This one is in the Bronx.

         18  It's a 55 two-family homes, 20-year exemption. First

         19  year exempt amount of 111,000, total amount of

         20  1,986,000.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Are there any

         22  questions on 1017.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBLES: I'm glad to

         24  see Jim Gardella.

         25                 MR. PECHEFSKY: The last one before
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          2  you is Land Use 1020. It's a Neighborhood Homes

          3  Program. Two buildings involved, one in Council

          4  Member Linares' district, one in Council Member

          5  Michels' district. These are two two-family homes,

          6  ten-year exemption, first year amount 3,602, total

          7  exempt amount of 41,000.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Are there any

          9  questions?

         10                 All right, thank you very much,

         11  David.

         12                 MR. PECHEFSKY: Thank you.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Okay, we're going

         14  to call for a vote now. And I understand the vote on

         15  these four items are significant issues and tax your

         16  sense of legislative pride.

         17                 MR. PECHEFSKY: Council Member, if I

         18  might add, these all received the approval of the

         19  Council members in the concerned districts.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: All right, we

         21  have coupled Land Use items 952, 953, 1017, and

         22  1020. Again, I know it is difficult for everybody, I

         23  would ask for an affirmative vote. All right, roll

         24  call.

         25                 COUNCIL CLERK CHERRY: Berman.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: I vote aye.

          3                 COUNCIL CLERK CHERRY: Foster.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER FOSTER: Aye.

          5                 COUNCIL CLERK CHERRY: Michels.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: Aye.

          7                 COUNCIL CLERK CHERRY: O'Donovan.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER O'DONOVAN: Aye.

          9                 COUNCIL CLERK CHERRY: Wooten.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER WOOTEN: Aye.

         11                 COUNCIL CLERK CHERRY: Robles.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBLES: At the request

         13  of the Chairman, I am giving him his last vote, aye.

         14                 COUNCIL CLERK CHERRY: Rodriguez.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: Yes.

         16                 COUNCIL CLERK CHERRY: Moskowitz.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER MOSKOWITZ: Aye.

         18                 COUNCIL CLERK CHERRY: The vote stands

         19  at ten in the affirmative, none in the negative and

         20  no abstentions, and is still open.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: All right, we

         22  have concluded this session. Thank you.

         23                 (The following testimony was read

         24  into the record.)

         25
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          2  Written Testimony Of:

          3  Assemblyman Jeffrey Dinowitz

          4  81st District

          5  Bronx County

          6

          7                 I urge the City Council Finance

          8  Committee to vote its support and approval of the

          9  Kingsbridge Business Improvement District.

         10                 Having resided in the Kingsbridge

         11  community for many years, I have been a supporter of

         12  the BID from the beginning. I support the BID as a

         13  community resident, as a member of the State

         14  Assembly representing the area, and as one of the

         15  tenants in the BID. My office, located at 3107

         16  Kingsbridge Avenue, is located within the area

         17  covered by the BID. Like so many of the property

         18  owners and commercial tenants, I recognize the

         19  importance of the establishment of the BID to

         20  Kingsbridge.

         21                 Early on in my tenure in the

         22  Assembly, I was helpful in convincing the NYS Urban

         23  Development Corporation to award a grant to the

         24  Kingsbridge-Riverdale-Van Cortlandt Development

         25  Corporation as start-up seed money for the BID.
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          2                 Since that time I have worked on the

          3  continuing efforts of the BID Steering Committee to

          4  make the BID a reality.

          5                 There are many programs the

          6  Kingsbridge BID will provide that will result in a

          7  real and positive impact on the community. The BID

          8  will hire maintenance workers to keep the area clean

          9  at all times. They will supplement City sanitation

         10  services. They will also conduct an ongoing

         11  anti-graffiti drive.

         12                 Up until now my office has been

         13  providing the funding to the Development Corporation

         14  to remove graffiti from lampposts, store gates and

         15  other locations in Kingsbridge. This is a function

         16  that the BID will handle. This will include removing

         17  flyers and posters from public property, keeping

         18  step streets clean and removing graffiti from walls.

         19                 The BID will maintain the planters

         20  that have already been installed by the Development

         21  Corporation through a grant from my office.

         22                 Economic development is a key

         23  function of the BID. It will provide a Business

         24  Planning and Information Center and will seek to

         25  secure business loans and facade improvement
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          2  revolving loan funds. One of the grants I have

          3  awarded to the development corporation will be used,

          4  in part, for this revolving loan fund. The BID will

          5  serve as a clearinghouse for property owners and

          6  potential businesses looking for space in

          7  Kingsbridge. The BID will disseminate information

          8  through newsletters, lectures and information

          9  sessions. In addition, the BID will work to attract

         10  funding for improvements in the area.

         11                 Security is an important issue for

         12  merchants and shoppers in Kingsbridge. The BID will

         13  lead the way for improved police protection,

         14  security planning and improved lighting. I am

         15  allotting State DOT funds to provide better street

         16  lighting for all West 231st Street in conjunction

         17  with the BID's efforts to improve security.

         18                 The BID will also focus on marketing

         19  and promotion for the Kingsbridge shopping district.

         20  This will include promotional materials such as maps

         21  and shopper guides, marketing, including special

         22  events, and holiday decorations.

         23                 The Kingsbridge shopping district is

         24  a vibrant one, which has seen both improvement and

         25  deterioration in recent years. I strongly believe
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          2  that once the BID is up and running we will begin to

          3  see a huge change for the better. Kingsbridge has

          4  always been more than a neighborhood shopping area.

          5  As a transportation hub (the 1 and 9 trains, as well

          6  as the 7, 9 10 and 20 buses all stop in the district

          7  as well as Manhattan express buses,) i is more of a

          8  regional shopping district. It serves not only

          9  Kingsbridge, but also the surrounding communities of

         10  Riverdale, Marble Hill, Kingsbridge Heights and Van

         11  Cortlandt Village. The future viability of all of

         12  these communities is tied in with the success of the

         13  Kingsbridge shopping district.

         14                 Again, as a community resident, as

         15  its Assemblyman -- and as a tenant covered by the

         16  BID -- I urge you to move expeditiously to approve

         17  the establishment of the Kingsbridge BID and move

         18  this process along as quickly as possible. The

         19  future of our community depends on it.

         20                 Thank you.

         21                 (Hearing concluded at 11:33 a.m.)

         22
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         24

         25
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          2              CERTIFICATION

          3

          4

          5     STATE OF NEW YORK   )

          6     COUNTY OF NEW YORK  )

          7

          8

          9                 I, CINDY MILLELOT, a Certified

         10  Shorthand Reporter and Notary Public in and for the

         11  State of New York, do hereby certify that the

         12  foregoing is a true and accurate transcript of the

         13  within proceeding.

         14                 I further certify that I am not

         15  related to any of the parties to this action by

         16  blood or marriage, and that I am in no way

         17  interested in the outcome of this matter.

         18                 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto

         19  set my hand this 28th day of March 2001.

         20
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                                   ---------------------

         25                          CINDY MILLELOT, CSR.
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          9            I, CINDY MILLELOT, a Certified Shorthand

         10  Reporter and a Notary Public in and for the State of

         11  New York, do hereby certify the aforesaid to be a

         12  true and accurate copy of the transcription of the

         13  audio tapes of this hearing.
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